SOUTH ATLANTIC FISHERY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL

JOINT EXECUTIVE FINANCE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

Renaissance Orlando Airport Hotel Orlando, Florida

June 10, 2010

SUMMARY MINUTES

Executive Committee:

Duane Harris, Chairman George Geiger

Robert Boyles

Finance Committee:

David Cupka, Chairman Mark Robson

Dr. Brian Cheuvront

Council Members:

Dr. Wilson LaneyDr. Roy CrabtreeBen HartigRita MerrittCharlie PhillipsDoug HaymansLt. Brian SullivanTom Swatzel

Council Staff:

Bob MahoodGregg WaughKim IversonRoger PuglieseKate QuigleyRick DeVictorJohn CarmichaelAnna MartinKari FenskeDr. Julie NeerMyra BrouwerMike Collins

Observers/Participants:

Paul Raymond Dr. Jack McGovern

Monica Smit-Brunello Phil Steele
Dr. Bonnie Ponwith Bill Teehan

Karla Gore

The Joint Executive Finance Committee of the Whole of the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council convened in the Ballroom of the Renaissance Orlando Airport Hotel, Orlando, Florida, June 10, 2010, and was called to order at 3:40 o'clock p.m. by Chairman Duane Harris.

MR. HARRIS: Okay, let's reconvene and take up the Executive/Finance Committee, which is Tab 6 I believe in your briefing book. The first item is the approval of the agenda. There is not a lot on the agenda, but does anybody wish to make any changes for add anything to the agenda?

MR. MAHOOD: Under other business, there is an Attachment 2 in your briefing book. We are going to go over our upcoming schedule for sometime out in the future, 2010 and 2011, and kind of get a feel from the council if we're on the right track. Now, a number of things have changed, and Gregg is going to go over those. That is one addition and I believe you had two additions, Mr. Chairman.

MR. HARRIS: Well, I think one of those two additions has been resolved, and that was the prioritization of the catch shares program with respect to golden crab. The other one is the question of the boundary issue between the Gulf and the South Atlantic Council. If there are no objections, that will constitute our agenda. Do I see any objection to the agenda? Seeing none, the agenda is approved.

The next item is the minutes of the March 2010 meeting. Are there any additions, corrections or deletions to those? Seeing none, is there any objection to approving the minutes of the March meeting? Seeing none, the meeting minutes are approved. The next item is a status report on the CY 2010 Council Budget. Bob.

MR. MAHOOD: It is behind Attachment 1 under the Executive/Finance Committee Tab. If you've had a chance to look at and have any questions, I'll certainly take those. We're in pretty good shape. We ended up having the total of about \$3.865 million this year for operations. I think Mike just told me we have all of our money in except one additional pot of money that I'll talk about in just minute. It took a while.

It kind of trickles in throughout the year, but I think we have it probably quicker than we did last year. With that, Mr. Chairman, unless some has got some specific questions, we're on track. If you look in the percentage spent category, you'll see that we're pretty much on track for this time of the year. We're in good shape.

MR. HARRIS: Questions for Bob regarding the budget? Seeing none, one more item.

MR. MAHOOD: One more item that doesn't show on here, we will be hosting the National SSC Meeting this year in October; and to do that, the National Marine Fisheries Service will give us \$100,000 to conduct that meeting. I think there is going to be a number things addressed by the eight SSCs around the country that have been pertinent to the discussion here today, trying to work on some of these issues, especially things like data-poor stocks and how do we deal with them, how do we develop the control rules.

What amazes me is you've actually got some of these councils that have all the data in the world that still feel like they have data-poor stocks. They just don't know what data-poor stocks are. Well, anyway, that will be an addition. Mike and John's staff are working on putting this together, and we're going to try to make it a very productive session this year. I think there has been a lot accomplished the previous two years, and we expect that to continue. That is it on the budget, Mr. Chairman.

MR. HARRIS: All right, the next item is the report on the CCC meeting or is the Regional Operations Agreement; what would you like to –

MR. MAHOOD: The CCC meeting.

MR. HARRIS: Okay, we'll talk about the CCC meeting that just concluded in Anchorage. I thought it was a good meeting. It kind of followed the meeting in Washington several months previous, and I don't think we really learned a whole lot more at this meeting than we heard in Washington.

Eric Schwaab did attend the meeting and was there the entire time. I would say that the North Pacific Council did an excellent job hosting it. I'll ask David if he has anything to add and then Bob and then Phil.

MR. CUPKA: Mr. Chairman, just two things very quickly. First is that our council will host the CCC meeting next year in Charleston probably sometime in early May or late April or whenever. We're still working on hotel arrangements, but we will be hosting that meeting next year. One of the few things that showed any progress that came out of this meeting was – as some of you are aware when the Magnuson Act was reauthorized, it formally recognized the CCC in the Act. At the meeting this year we finished up some draft terms of reference for the Council Coordination Committee.

This deals with things like membership and organization and rules of orders, meetings, agendas, executive sessions, minutes and public participation. It spells out in a much more formal way how the CCC is going to operate, so that was good to try and get those finalized. That is all I would add, Mr. Chairman.

MR. MAHOOD: I think it was a pretty good meeting. The councils had a lot of good interchange. The way these meetings are conducted, the first day the councils are separate from the NMFS Leadership Group. We then come together in joint session and conduct the rest of the meeting that way.

I would like to say we missed Bonnie and Roy. Phil was there and he did a job of being there, but the one place we really missed Roy and the one thing I was most disappointed about is – there were a number of items. We thought there would be a lot final guidance in several areas. One dealt with the SSCs. Nothing new has been done sine January. One dealt with the ACLs; nothing has happened.

There was really nobody there like Roy to lead that conversation from the NMFS side of it. Even though the councils had a lot of questions and we had a good session amongst ourselves, there just wasn't that component on the NMFS side to really give us some guidance that we really could have used at this point in time. We're hoping that will move forward.

The reason Roy and Bonnie weren't there is because of the oil spill activities, and that was a shame. Other than that, I think it was a good meeting. It is always good when the NMFS staff and council staffs get together and have these types of discussions. The other thing that makes these meetings much more pleasant now is everybody seems to have plenty of money.

Back when there wasn't enough money to go around, they weren't quite as simpatico as they are these days. Hopefully, the one coming up in Charleston, we'll put on a good meeting and some of these things will come to fruition on these final rules and this type of thing prior to that time. That's all I have, Mr. Chairman.

MR. HARRIS: Phil, did you have anything you wanted to add?

MR. STEELE: Not much, but just to remind you of the magic number that you got from the Pacific being 22 stock assessments per year.

MR. HARRIS: Yes, the magic number that we got from the Pacific was 22 stock assessments per year.

DR. CHEUVRONT: How many people do they have to do it?

MR. HARRIS: I have no idea, but they get 22.

MR. MAHOOD: The one thing you've got to remember – and Duane hit on this a little earlier – you come to the east side of the country and you've got one science center that covers the New England Council and the Mid-Atlantic Council. You've got one science center that covers the Caribbean, Gulf and South Atlantic. That is five councils, two science centers. They've got six science centers. Out on the west coast you've got three councils and four science centers. Now figure that one out.

MR. TEEHAN: Mr. Chairman, of those 22 stock assessments, aren't 15 of those rockfish?

MR. HARRIS: Different species of rockfish, yes. I talked about this the other day. One of the most impressive presentations we heard was from the Pacific Council on how they were under the impression that one of the species of rockfish was severely overfished and ended up working with the fishing community who argued that and got some really sophisticated acoustic equipment, put it on fishing boats and went out there and determined that those rockfish stocks were in much, much better shape than anybody ever imagined.

That was very impressive and you see what you can do when you've got the right mix of people and equipment and the cooperation of the fishing community, and they obviously had that in this

project. Bob, anything else about that? How about the Regional Operations Agreement; did you want to talk about that?

MR. MAHOOD: That would be next. If you'll turn to Attachment 2 under the Executive/Finance, PDF Page 62, one thing I would like to say is we send the Regional Operating Agreement out to all the council members, but a lot goes into that back and forth between our staff and the regional office staff.

We all sit down and we agree on what we're going to try to do and the timelines on doing it. I know Gregg and Phil and Jack and a number of the folks get together back and forth. The different teams have to be involved in it, all the players on the different teams, looking at their times. As you can see, it has developed into a fairly good little manual there.

It gives us some direction and I hope it gives the councils a good idea of what their folks are about both at the regional level and the staff level. What Gregg would like to go over is this is kind of what we lay out as our timing. As I was going through it earlier in this meeting and looking at it, I see that we're already – we're doing pretty good on a couple of things, but we're falling behind on others. In the interim I think we've had some additional things added at this meeting, so Gregg will go through that and try to get your input on the track he wants to be on and maybe what some of the priorities are and some of the timelines that may need to change.

MR. WAUGH: The first grouping are items that have a statutory deadline of 2010. We've finished 17B. That was submitted on March 30th. 17A, we gave final approval here, and our intention was to submit that by the end of the month. However, you all have added a new alternative that is going to require new economic analyses.

That is going to require a bit of rewriting to the document and editing. We figure it is a high probability this document may go into a lawsuit, and so it will get extra scrutiny before it gets submitted. I would imagine it will be August before that document gets completed and submitted.

So now instead of after this meeting be able to focus the team and staff efforts on the other items, other actions, other documents, we're going to have to devote a month or so or more of time to revising 17A, so that is going to negatively impact our other actions. Those are the two items with a 2010 statutory deadline, and I would assume that 17A is our number one priority from you all.

MR. HARRIS: That is a pretty safe assumption.

MR. WAUGH: Okay. Then we go to 2011 deadlines. I'll run through them first with some changes and then we'll come back and get your sort of guidance on how we proceed with this. Snapper Grouper Amendment 18 went out to one round of public hearings back in November of 2009. We anticipate approving this for another round of public hearings in September of this year.

Whether we can get that completed and done prior to the December, Red Munden indicated they would like to have a public hearing in conjunction with their December meeting in Virginia, which is the week after ours, so perhaps that would slide then to continuing public input and getting final approval at our March 2011 meeting and then looking at the complete document either in March of June of 2011 and submitting the document April or July of 2011.

The second item with a 2011 deadline is the Comprehensive Ecosystem-Based Amendment 2, which we will be talking about later today. Right now the intent is to approve that for public hearings in December, do public hearings January/February, review actions in March, final approval for formal review in June.

Then we come to two joint amendments with the Gulf Council. Our Mackerel Committee met jointly with the Gulf on Tuesday. The schedule for this item is slightly different in terms of when the council reviews and approves for public hearing. We will still do it at our September meeting. There is quite a bit of work to be done on that document to get it ready for approval in September.

Then the Gulf would anticipate they would approve at their October 25-28 meeting in Baton Rouge. We would do public hearings in the November and December time period; and then review public hearing input at our December meeting and the Gulf's February 2011 meeting; final approval at our March 2011 meeting and the Gulf's April 2011 meeting and sending that in April.

The other joint amendment with the Gulf has a SEDAR update ongoing now. We had our Spiny Lobster Joint APs in on Monday and the committee. We're looking to review the document and approve for public hearings, us in December 2010 and the Gulf in February 2011; doing the public hearings in April 2011 after the fishing season ends; review public comments at both councils in June; and then final review and approval for submittal in August for Gulf and September for us; and submitting in September 2011.

You can see we're starting to get near the end of 2011. Then the biggest item to meet this 2011 deadline is the Comprehensive ACL Amendment, which obviously has a lot in it. It isn't just asking the economists to do analyses for snapper grouper, which is a large item, but it is snapper grouper plus all of our other FMPs. This is going to require a lot of work.

The anticipated schedule is to approve for public hearings in December 2010; do public hearings in January and February of 2011; review comments in March; review the complete document and approve for formal review in June and send to the secretary in June. Given the complexity of this document, I would fully anticipate that sliding a month, such that we're giving you final approval in September.

Now, I'll stop there because these others have no statutory deadline. However, there is a new amendment. We got the letter on red grouper at this meeting, so we have an Amendment 23 dealing with red grouper and you added black grouper to that. We have, under the new Magnuson Act, two years to implement an amendment to end overfishing.

That clock started when we got the letter at this meeting, so June 2010 we have 18 months for us to finish it and sent it to NMFS so that they have six months to implement it. That means we have to take final action in December of 2011. In this schedule I just outlined to you we have to squeeze another amendment in there that establishes the rebuilding plan for red grouper.

I'll stop there, and this doesn't get into any of these other items nor does it get into the new framework that you talked about. I don't know if we need to prioritize any of these because all of them have a December 2011 deadline. Now, whether that can be achieved or not is pretty questionable. There is a lot of analyses, a lot of work, a lot of hearings there.

As you heard, too, it is perhaps unfortunate timing, but we've got to hold a National SSC Meeting and the Council Chairmen's Meeting. Again, I don't know if you want to discuss any of this now because, honestly, my recommendation at this stage is that we focus our staff and NMFS resources in meeting all of these 2011 statutory deadlines before we devote much staff time to any of these other items.

MR. HARRIS: Comments or questions for Gregg? Bill.

MR. TEEHAN: Mr. Chairman, I guess this question would be for Roy. It sounds like you all have a fairly ambitious schedule for December 2011 and I imagine the Gulf Council will be the same. I also imagine, knowing human nature, that most of the other councils in the nation will be turning their stuff in late or at the last minute. Roy, do you anticipate any sort of backlog on all these ACLs and so forth being due by the end of the fishing year and we're assuming 2011? What is going to be that status or situation; do you know?

DR. CRABTREE: I expect you to get them done on time.

MR. TEEHAN: Okay, you got that one; now what is the reality of the situation?

DR. CRABTREE: We'll do the best we can to get them done, Bill, but obviously it is a lot of work and it is a challenge.

MR. HARRIS: Other comments or questions? Well, my suggestion is we do have to focus on the statutory deadline items that are on our plate. If that means sliding some of these other items, they're going to have to slide. I don't see any way we can squeeze both the council staff and the NOAA Fisheries staff that work on these things any more than they're already being squeezed.

I would just say we have to be practical with respect to all this and maybe as we make some decisions with respect to moving some things out of the FMPs and giving perhaps some items to the state of Florida to deal with, maybe that will lessen some of the workload, but it is certainly not going lessen the bulk of it. It might give us a 5 percent break, but that is probably all it would give us. Unless I hear anything different, I think we've got to move forward with the statutory deadline stuff. Brian.

DR. CHEUVRONT: I agree with that, Duane, but some of the stuff, for example, like meeting planning and all that that we've got coming up next year, you can't wait until you've got the

statutory stuff done. You're going to have to have some time to spend on that. We have a couple of things under the non-statutory deadline that perhaps there is some work that can be done, and I was sort of thinking along the lines of the Golden Crab Amendment and Snapper Grouper Amendment 21.

That is the Comprehensive Catch Shares Trip Limits Amendments. Among the non-statutory things, in my mind those are probably two of the most important things that we need to get moving on. Assuming that there may be time to do some other non-statutorily driven stuff, I think it probably wouldn't hurt to give council some indication of what our preferences are for some of these non-statutory things, understanding that they take a back seat to meeting our statutory requirements.

MR. WAUGH: And we do have some assistance. Mark was here this week, and he has been tasked to work with us out of HQ. We do have some assistance to work on catch shares. The golden crab one would not be as involved as something like the one for comprehensive catch shares. That is something that we can work on.

As we take more of our economist's time on that, that shifts more of the burden on the NMFS economists. They're fully loaded as well. All of this assumes that oil doesn't come around the corner in Florida. We will take that direction to work as we have time on the Golden Crab Amendment 5 and Snapper Grouper Amendment 21, which is the Comprehensive Catch Shares Amendment.

MR. HARRIS: Other comments and direction to staff with respect to this issue?

MR. MAHOOD: I think what we maybe need to do is – and this goes on. We have an interchange with the regional office. Maybe before the September meeting we can sit down with Phil and Roy and myself, maybe, and Gregg; and if not, at least at Phil and Gregg's level and sit down and really try to lay things out relative to what resources we have.

When Gregg says when the oil comes around the corner, I know that the staff down there – and certainly we lost Roy at the CCC meeting because of the oil spill in the Gulf. I don't know if that is going to get any better anytime soon, so there may be some other things that draw resources from the regional office and science centers.

Maybe we can get together and look at kind of where we are and what we've got to do and get it fleshed out. Also, we've got one vacant position that we'll be hiring for. As a matter of fact, I probably should announce it. Dale Theiling from our SEDAR staff is leaving the end of June; and Kari Fenske, who is one of our staff scientists under John, she is going to take Dale's position on the SEDAR staff. Kari's position will be open and we will looking at getting somebody in there.

Also, we still have a vacant – if you looked at the budget, I was surprised nobody asked me why we had about a hundred thousand that we didn't have obligated for anything. As you recall, we talked about kind of holding on to that money to see what happens with budgets in the next couple of years. We have that capability of bringing on another staff person.

The last direction we got I think from the council was that we may want to look at filling the cultural anthropologist's position, which could be a key position in helping develop some of these actions we're taking. I think you still just have one cultural anthropologist at the region or do you have two now? You have two now. That is something else when we talk to the regional office we can look at; and if that is not the appropriate level; we may need another economist or something like that, then that is something that we can also put on the table at look at doing.

MR. GEIGER: Well, we've got money; why don't they bring in Party's Are Us to plan the Triple C meeting and bring that to fruition?

MR. HARRIS: I think in all likelihood it could involve a meeting planner to assist with that, but I have to let them make the decision based on the amount of money that is available. Phil.

MR. STEELE: Just a couple of things. We are in the midst of hiring another anthropologist. We only have one, by the way, and we're going to get another one here sometime in the next three or four months as soon as Work Force Management clears the package. Also, probably later on this year, because we've assumed the duties of writing the regulations for the South Atlantic, I'll probably add a junior regulation writer to the system.

As you know, once the plan and amendments are all done, that really starts a lot of my staff's work again in addition to the IPTs. I don't know if Roy is going to brief you or how much on the oil spill. We've kind of got it down to a system with the emergency rule and the kind of a framework action that we've done where we examine the data that we get on a daily basis and one makes a decision on whether or not we move the lines that adjust the oil spill.

If and when it comes around the corner, then we'll probably do the same thing. It is a system; we've got it down, but it is 24/7, seven days a week. It is something we have to look at. The man is on staff and we'll just deal with it as we see fit. I do have some extra staff coming on board and it should help a little bit with these things. We'll get it done.

MR. WAUGH: I don't want to trigger a debate over the pros and cons of a cultural anthropologist on staff, but the realities are we have to do fishery impact statements and social impact assessments. Those are rigorous analyses. We are impacting the fishing sectors tremendously; and to do these cumulative impact analyses is no easy task.

I'm in the position of having to argue with Phil and Phil's staff to try and get them to cover all the social impact analyses and that is not fair. I mean, if there is concern of putting someone in a position long term, then at least let's hire someone on a contractual basis to work with us for a year or two to do these analyses. Quite frankly, those sections are not as strong as they could be and as they need to be.

MR. HARRIS: Well, I understand that and I think everybody on the council understands that, but the question is going to be where is the money going to come from, do we have the money, what do we give up if we do that? Whether we bring somebody on board on a permanent basis or on a contractual basis, let's look at that. Why don't you all just kind of analyze that and come

back to us in September with a recommendation. Would that work, Bob? Okay, anything else on this issue.

Okay, the last item is the one other business item that we haven't talked about yet and that is the boundary line issue between the Gulf Council and the South Atlantic Council. I know Mark had some things to talk about with respect to that, but, Roy, did you want to open that discussion or would you like congress to open that discussion?

DR. CRABTREE: Well, I'll open it. We certainly have a problem down in the Keys, and I never thought it was fair to the folks down there. It is the largest fishing area in Florida and one of the largest in the country. I've just never been happy with the jurisdictional situation. Some time back I asked the attorneys if we could change that. I guess it is unclear to me still whether we can change or not. Bob says no, but I wouldn't mind exploring it a little more. I have never really gone anywhere with it because I wouldn't even attempt it unless both councils were supportive of doing it.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: We had an intern look into it, and she produced a document that I believe Mike McLemore reviewed. I think I saw it, too. It has been a couple of years. My recollection is that the decision was it probably couldn't be done, but I would be glad to look at that again and look at seeing whether we could do it if that is what you want.

Right now the Magnuson Act states that you have authority over fisheries in the Atlantic Ocean seaward of the states of North Carolina, South Carolina, Georgia and Florida. My thinking is the Atlantic Ocean off of the east coast of Florida is your boundary that is seaward. The Gulf is the same except it is in the Gulf of Mexico seaward of those Gulf states. I would be glad to look at it if you would like me to a little further and get a more definitive statement.

MR. TEEHAN: Mr. Chairman, we've broached this with the Gulf Council at our last meeting and there seemed to be some interest amongst the council members. Of course, this is a Florida issue so they tend to defer to the Florida constituent. On the council levels and on the state level, we have the same problem with Monroe County.

Grouper is an excellent example of Gulf federal regulations and South Atlantic federal regulations. They're all governed by which side of the bridge you're on, and it is very difficult for enforcement and anglers to understand that. I think we would support some sort of a change, be it toward Monroe County/Collier Line, which would be the Gulf side, or Monroe/Dade or whatever works out I think is something that we certainly are willing discuss.

I will defer to Mark because I know he has got comments. However, I don't think we've really adequately run this up a flag pole to the people who live in Monroe Country, and I think that would be a very important group of constituents to get some comment back. For example, somebody correct me if I'm wrong, but I don't believe MRFSS even takes data in Monroe County because of the confusion of where those fish were caught. Something should be done.

MR. ROBSON: Bill hit a number of key points. Number one, this is important to Florida because it has been a historical point of confusion for fishermen, for our enforcement officers,

for data collectors and data analysts for years and years. I don't know whether recreational data – how exactly it is reported, but quite honestly it is a mess down in the Keys and in Monroe County because of this split jurisdictional issue.

Bill is also correct that this is not something that we have discussed much at all with the fishermen and the community down there, and that is certainly something that our agency would want to do. I also don't have a strong feeling as to whether or not it would be better for Monroe County to be considered Atlantic waters for federal management purposes or Gulf waters.

My understanding of the process is that if the state of Florida – and I think Monica may be able to – I don't know if is somewhere in the Magnuson Act, but I believe the process is for a request for a change in a council boundary can come from a state; is that correct?

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: I have no idea, but I will find out. The changes in council boundaries, I don't really think it is addressed in the Magnuson Act, but maybe it is. Bob might be correcting me.

MR. ROBSON: I think it is.

MR. TEEHAN: I think it is the governor of the state request that the Secretary of Commerce make the change; does that sound familiar?

DR. CRABTREE: I agree with Monica; I don't think there is anything in the Act about that. Monica is right on what the statute says, and in the regulations we spell it out. The question is really where is the demarcation between the Gulf of Mexico and the Atlantic Ocean? Well, does that necessarily have to be U.S. 1 running through the Keys or could it be redefined as somewhere else? That is the question. I have argued that, yes, it could be redefined somewhere else. There is nothing magical about U.S. 1, that that has to be it. I don't know if I'll prevail on that.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: We need to look at what established that boundary, too. It is not established, I don't believe, by the Magnuson Act. I don't know how the demarcation between what is Gulf and what is South Atlantic in terms of the actual water part. I don't know how that got established, but we'll find out.

MR. HARRIS: I think David knows the answer to that and he is next up.

MR. CUPKA: Yes, I'm really telling my age now, but I remember when this issue came up when the councils were first formed and I was going to South Atlantic Council meetings. The Act does say that we have responsibility for stocks in the Atlantic. The real question is where does the Atlantic stop and the Gulf start?

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: That is what I meant.

MR. CUPKA: And it is not spelled out in law, I don't think, of the Magnuson Act, but they did go to a federal law that spells out where the Atlantic stops and the Gulf starts, and it seems to me,

as I recall, it was based on some federal law that was used for purposes of oil and gas development. That's how it ended up where it is now, but the real question is – you know, we clearly have responsibility for the Atlantic, but the question is where does the Atlantic start and stop. It has nothing to do with the U.S. 1, I don't believe, but that's the way it came about. It seems to me that –

DR. CRABTREE: I think right now the boundary traces the line where it shifts between three miles and nine mile state waters on Florida. There was a big argument over this, and I think there were threatened lawsuits and things, which tells me there were different opinions about it, and there was some discretion involved. I think we just need to find out whether this is something that is set in stone or is it something that could be changed through rulemaking. I have asked that, but I haven't gotten a definitive answer.

MR. CUPKA: The way it was settled I think – at least the story I always heard was that it was very contentious. I don't know that there was ever actually a lawsuit. There was talk about having lawsuits. At the time we had a member of the South Atlantic Council, Jay Roy Duggan, who was good friends with the Attorney General of the United States, and they were playing golf one day and Jay Roy suggested to him that they use that law to separate the Atlantic and Gulf, and that's how it came about. I don't think there was ever actually any kind of lawsuit, but there were threats of lawsuits, but it got settled before it got to that point.

MR. SMIT-BRUNELLO: I think there was a general counsel opinion written on it, too, that I've seen. It's probably on parchment with the quill and stuff, but we will dust it off and see if we can find it.

DR. CHEUVRONT: Most of the points I wanted to make were made by Bill and I think David at some point on what they were saying, but the only thing I am going to leave with here is that any decision to change this is bigger than just the councils. It is going to affect data collections, it is going to affect all kinds of stuff; and so I think before we would consider doing that, I think we would probably need to assess how some of those things would need to change as well to accommodate such a change.

MR. HARRIS: Well, you're right, Brian, it also would change some of our fishery management plans; like golden crab where we've been working with the fishermen for a long, long time, and I don't know that they're catching any golden crab in the Gulf; and if all of a sudden we shifted the boundary over to the east coast somewhere, to put the Florida Keys in the Gulf of Mexico Boundary, they would be responsible for a lot of that golden crab fishery. They certainly don't have the tradition. There are just a lot of questions. Mark.

MR. ROBSON: Well, what would happen to get this thing started? If the state of Florida sent a letter to both councils requesting that this be examined for possible consideration, that means some work would have to get done to evaluate this based on all those things you were just talking about, but would that be sufficient and could that get a good, detailed analysis completed based on a letter like that?

DR. CRABTREE: Yes, I think if you sent a letter to Chairman Harris and Chairman Shipp and myself expressing the state of Florida's interest in this, that might help get this going.

MR. ROBSON: And I guess that letter, of course, would be – we would want to be transparent with the public and so the implication would be that a review and consideration of this issue with both councils and NOAA Fisheries would also involve some level of public involvement and participation in the discussion.

DR. CRABTREE: Well, under any circumstances, if this change were to be made, it would have to go through a proposed rulemaking and there would be public comments on it and all those types of things. I would guess that the councils could hold hearings on it.

MR. HARRIS: Now that I've let everybody have their way, I'm going to let Bob tell you what we need to do.

MR. MAHOOD: I researched this a little bit when it first came up. Basically, it is going to take congress to change it. You have to amend the Magnuson Act. You can't just reach an agreement where the boundary set by the congress was. I think we would have to go back – I've got a book that has the intent of the legislation going way back to 1976.

I would like to see the report that was done on that. It is interesting when you look at the definition of the Gulf of Mexico. It says the Gulf of Mexico is an arm of the Atlantic Ocean, so maybe we should be managing the Gulf, but we don't want it anymore; it is polluted. I think Roy is right about how they picked the lines.

It says it is an arm of the Atlantic Ocean in Southeast North America bordering on eastern Mexico; the southeast United States and Cuba. It connects with the Atlantic Ocean through the Straits of Florida and with the Caribbean Sea through the Yucatan Peninsula. I suspect what they did, Roy – and I'm not sure where the nine-limit line starts. Does it start on that side of Key West? I suspect you're right; they probably took that line and that was the demarcation line that they used to demarcate the Gulf of Mexico and the South Atlantic.

DR. CRABTREE: I think it is actually out in the Tortugas. Where are you reading that from, by the way?

MR. MAHOOD: Well, it is Answers.com, but it is very similar to what I've seen. I think I have an easier fix for Mark. Now, the problem Florida is having are regulations on one side of the bridge are different than regulations on the other side of the bridge. Why don't we form – in part of your letter for changing the boundary – form an ad hoc committee of the two councils to sit down and have compatible regulations in the Florida Keys.

To me that is a much easier fix than trying to change a boundary, because I don't think you're going to get our council to agree to that. I'm not going to let them as long as I'm here because we fought those battles. Early on there were actually lawyers hired and that is why there is language in the Magnuson Act telling the councils they will have to get permission from NOAA General Counsel to hire an attorney.

MR. TEEHAN: Bob, I have a solution for you. Why don't we give you the Gulf for now as a trial basis; and when you get it cleaned up, we'll take it back.

MR. MAHOOD: On several occasions, I think going as far back as when Ben was on the council, we talked about getting together and doing something as simple as having compatible regulations in that area. I don't know why we have not ever done that.

MR. ROBSON: Well, that is absolutely what I would love to see, but I think the reality is and given the rapid changes in regulations we have seen in the last two years and are likely to continue to see as we're constantly rebuilding and trying to adjust management regulations, that is going to be almost impossible. It has been very frustrating for the state of Florida.

It is very frustrating for the fishermen down there to have to try to figure out which set of federal regulations they've got to comply with, and they're not consistent. Shallow-water grouper this year and last year was a very good example of that, and it has a direct bearing on the people fishing down there in Monroe County. I think it would be great if we could make sure it always happens, that that group is always workings toward consistency, but it doesn't seem to be that feasible to me.

MR. HARRIS: Any discussion on this issue? Mark, you can certainly write a letter, if you would like, and if that gets the ball rolling – I suspect the answer that we're going to receive from the attorneys is essentially what we've heard here today, but I can't predict what the attorneys would do.

Nonetheless, I think it is an important issue, and it certainly is not something that we would take lightly even making some request to change a boundary line. I think as Bob said it would be a lot easier if we could try to come up with compatible regulations in the Keys. But if we don't begin working on that soon; it is like a lot of other things, it will get moved to the back burner and never see the light of day. Maybe a letter, as Roy suggested, would be appropriate and you might want to put something in there about compatible regulations and some kind of ad hoc working group, I don't know, whatever you want to do.

DR. CRABTREE: And just as the last word, personally I think it would be easier to change the law than to get the Gulf and the South Atlantic to come to agreement on compatible regulations.

MR. HARRIS: That might have been true in the past, Roy, but we've got this blood brother relationship now with the Gulf. Okay, is there anything else to come before the Executive/Finance Committee? Okay, this committee is adjourned.

(Whereupon, the meeting was adjourned at 4:30 o'clock p.m., June 10, 2010.)

- - -

MR. TEEHAN: Bob, I have a solution for you. Why don't we give you the Gulf for now as a trial basis; and when you get it cleaned up, we'll take it back.

MR. MAHOOD: On several occasions, I think going as far back as when Ben was on the council, we talked about getting together and doing something as simple as having compatible regulations in that area. I don't know why we have not ever done that.

MR. ROBSON: Well, that is absolutely what I would love to see, but I think the reality is and given the rapid changes in regulations we have seen in the last two years and are likely to continue to see as we're constantly rebuilding and trying to adjust management regulations, that is going to be almost impossible. It has been very frustrating for the state of Florida.

It is very frustrating for the fishermen down there to have to try to figure out which set of federal regulations they've got to comply with, and they're not consistent. Shallow-water grouper this year and last year was a very good example of that, and it has a direct bearing on the people fishing down there in Monroe County. I think it would be great if we could make sure it always happens, that that group is always workings toward consistency, but it doesn't seem to be that feasible to me.

MR. HARRIS: Any discussion on this issue? Mark, you can certainly write a letter, if you would like, and if that gets the ball rolling – I suspect the answer that we're going to receive from the attorneys is essentially what we've heard here today, but I can't predict what the attorneys would do.

Nonetheless, I think it is an important issue, and it certainly is not something that we would take lightly even making some request to change a boundary line. I think as Bob said it would be a lot easier if we could try to come up with compatible regulations in the Keys. But if we don't begin working on that soon; it is like a lot of other things, it will get moved to the back burner and never see the light of day. Maybe a letter, as Roy suggested, would be appropriate and you might want to put something in there about compatible regulations and some kind of ad hoc working group, I don't know, whatever you want to do.

DR. CRABTREE: And just as the last word, personally I think it would be easier to change the law than to get the Gulf and the South Atlantic to come to agreement on compatible regulations.

MR. HARRIS: That might have been true in the past, Roy, but we've got this blood brother relationship now with the Gulf. Okay, is there anything else to come before the Executive/Finance Committee? Okay, this committee is adjourned.

(Whereupon,	the meeting was adjourned	ed at 4:30 o'clock p.m., June	10, 2010.)
Certified By:	&	Date:	
	Transcri	bed By:	
	Graham Trans	criptions, Inc.	
	July 5	. 2010	

South Atlantic Fishery Management Council **2009 - 2010 Council Membership**

COUNCIL CHAIRMAN:

Charles Duane Harris

105 Demere Retreat Lane St. Simons Island, GA 31522 912/638-9430 (ph) seageorg@bellsouth.net

COUNCIL VICE-CHAIRMAN

David M. Cupka

P.O. Box 12753 Charleston, SC 29422 843/795-8591 (hm) 843/870-5495 (cell) palmettobooks@bellsouth.net

Deirdre Warner-Kramer

Office of Marine Conservation
OES/OMC
2201 C Street, N.W.
Department of State, Room 5806
Washington, DC 20520
202/647-3228 (ph); 202/736-7350 (f)
Warner-KramerDM@state.gov

Robert H. Boyles, Jr.

S.C. Dept. of Natural Resources Marine Resources Division P.O. Box 12559 (217 Ft. Johnson Road) Charleston, SC 29422-2559 843/953-9304 (ph) 843/953-9159 (fax) boylesr@dnr.sc.gov

Dr. Wilson Laney

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
South Atlantic Fisheries Coordinator
P.O. Box 33683
Raleigh, NC 27695-7617
(110 Brooks Ave
237 David Clark Laboratories,
NCSU Campus
Raleigh, NC 27695-7617)
919/515-5019 (ph)
919/515-4415 (f)
Wilson_Laney@fws.gov

Dr. Brian Cheuvront

N.C. Division of Marine Fisheries P.O. Box 769 (3441 Arendell St.) Morehead City, NC 28557 252/726-7021 Ext. 8015 (ph) 252/726-6187 brian.cheuvront@ncdenr.gov

Dr. Roy Crabtree

Regional Administrator NOAA Fisheries, Southeast Region 263 13th Avenue South St. Petersburg, FL 33701 727/824-5301 (ph); 727/824-5320 (f) roy.crabtree@noaa.gov

Benjamin M. "Mac" Currin

801 Westwood Drive Raleigh, NC 27607 919/881-0049 (ph) mcurrin1@bellsouth.net

George J. Geiger

566 Ponoka Street Sebastian, FL 32958 772/388-3183 (ph) georgeigeiger@bellsouth.net

Ben Hartig

9277 Sharon Street Hobe Sound, FL 33455 772/546-1541 (ph) bhartig@bellsouth.net

- Rita G. Merritt

38 Pelican Drive Wrightsville Beach, NC 28480 910/256-3197 (ph); 910/256-3689 (f) miridon@ec.rr.com

John V. O'Shea

Executive Director Atlantic States Marine Fisheries Commission 1444 Eye Street, N.W., 6th Floor Washington, D.C. 20005 202/289-6400 (ph); 202/289-6051 (f) voshea@asmfc.org

PAUL RAYMOND

Charles Phillips

Phillips Seafood / Sapelo Sea Farms 1418 Sapelo Avenue, N.E. Townsend, GA 31331 912/832-3149 (ph); 912/832-6228 (f) Ga capt@yahoo.com

Mark Robson

Director, Division of Marine Fisheries Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission 620 S. Meridian Street Tallahassee, FL 32399 850/487-0554 (ph); 850/487-4847(f) mark.robson@myfwc.com

Spud Woodward Do Wh Hamper Director, Coastal Resources Division GA Dept. of Natural Resources

One Conservation Way, Suite 300 Brunswick, GA 31520-8687 912/264-7218 (ph); 912/262-2318 (f) Spud.woodward@dnr.state.ga.us

Lt. Brian Sullivan

U.S. Coast Guard Brickell Plaza Federal Building 909 S.E. First Avenue Room 876/ DRE Miami, FL 33131-3050 305/415-6781 (ph) 305/415-6791 (f) Brian.A.Sullivan@uscg.mil

Tom Swatzel

P.O. Box 1311 Murrells Inlet, SC 29576 843/222-7456 (ph) tom@swatzel.com

JACK MCGOVERN

MONICA SMIT-BRUNELLO

PHIL STEERE

BONNIE PONWITH

BILL TERHAN

KARLA GORG

South Atlantic Fishery Management Council 2009 – 2010 Committees

ADVISORY PANEL SELECTION

Mark Robson, Chair Robert Boyles Brian Cheuvront Roy Crabtree Ben Hartig Spud Woodward Staff contact: Kim Iverson

DOLPHIN WAHOO
Tom Swatzel, Chair
Robert Boyles
Roy Crabtree
Ben Hartig
Wilson Laney
Rita Merritt
Charlie Phillips

Red Munden Mid-Atlantic Council New England Council Rep Staff contact: Gregg Waugh

ECOSYSTEM-BASED MANAGEMENT

Brian Cheuvront, Chair Spud Woodward, Vice-Chair

Roy Crabtree David Cupka Mac Currin George Geiger Ben Hartig Wilson Laney Rita Merritt Charlie Phillips Mark Robson

Staff contact: Roger Pugliese- FEP Myra Brouwer- Comp. Ecosystem-

based Amendment

EXECUTIVE

Duane Harris, Chair David Cupka, Vice-Chair

Mac Currin George Geiger Robert Boyles

Staff contact: Bob Mahood

FINANCE

David Cupka, Chair Mark Robson, Vice-Chair Brian Cheuvront Duane Harris

Mac Currin

Staff contact: Bob Mahood

GOLDEN CRAB

David Cupka, Chair Mac Currin Wilson Laney Charlie Phillips Tom Swatzel

Staff contact: Gregg Waugh

HABITAT & ENVIRON. PROTECTION

Mark Robson, Chair
Robert Boyles
Wilson Laney
Rita Merritt
Vince O'Shea
Charlie Phillips
Staff contact: Roger Pugliese
Myra Brouwer- Coral

HIGHLY MIGRATORY SPECIES

David Cupka, Chair Rita Merritt, Vice-Chair Roy Crabtree Mac Currin

George Geiger Duane Harris Brian Sullivan

Staff contact: Gregg Waugh

INFORMATION & EDUCATION

Robert Boyles, Chair Mac Currin, Vice-Chair Duane Harris

Duane Harris Mark Robson Brian Sullivan Tom Swatzel

Staff contact: Kim Iverson

KING & SPANISH MACKEREL

George Geiger, Chair David Cupka, Vice-Chair

Mac Currin Brian Cheuvront Duane Harris Ben Hartig Rita Merritt Charlie Phillips Mark Robson Tom Swatzel

Ron Smith, Mid-Atlantic Representative

Jack Travelstead, Mid-Atlantic

Representative

Staff contact: Gregg Waugh

LAW ENFORCEMENT

George Geiger, Chair Mac Currin, Vice-Chair Robert Boyles Duane Harris Ben Hartig Brian Sullivan

Staff contact: Myra Brouwer

CATCH SHARES

Rita Merritt, Chair Robert Boyles David Cupka George Geiger Ben Hartig Vince O'Shea Charlie Phillips Spud Woodward Tom Swatzel

Staff contact: Kate Quigley

PERSONNEL

Robert Boyles, Chair David Cupka George Geiger Duane Harris Spud Woodward

Staff contact: Bob Mahood

PROTECTED RESOURCES

David Cupka, Chair Wilson Laney, Vice-Chair Rita Merritt Mark Robson

Spud Woodward

Staff contact: Myra Brouwer

SCI. & STAT. SELECTION

Roy Crabtree, Chair Robert Boyles Brian Cheuvront Mark Robson Spud Woodward

Staff contact: John Carmichael

SEDAR Committee

Duane Harris, Chair George Geiger, Vice-Chair Brian Cheuvront David Cupka

Ben Hartig Vince O'Shea Mark Robson Tom Swatzel

Staff contact: John Carmichael

South Atlantic Fishery Management Council Staff

Executive Director

Robert K. Mahood robert.mahood@safmc.net

Deputy Executive Director

Gregg T. Waugh gregg.waugh@safmc.net

Public Information Officer

Kim Iverson

kim.iverson@safmc.net

Senior Fishery Biologist

Roger Pugliese roger.pugliese@safmc.net

Staff Economist

Kathryn (Kate) Quigley kate.quigley@safmc.net

Cultural Anthropologist

Open Position

Environmental Impact Scientist

Rick DeVictor richard.devictor@safmc.net

Science and Statistics Program Manager

John Carmichael john.carmichael@safmc.net

Outreach Assistant

Anna Martin anna.martin@safmc.net

Fishery Biologist

'Kari Fenske kari,fenske@safmc.net

SEDAR Coordinators

Julie Neer - julie.neer@safmc.net Dale Theiling - dale.theiling@safmc.net

Coral Reef Biologist

Myra Brouwer myra.brouwer@safmc.net

Administrative Officer

Mike Collins mike.collins@safmc.net

Financial Secretary

Debra Buscher deb.buscher@safmc.net

Admin. Secretary /Travel Coordinator

Cindy Chaya cindy.chaya@safmc.net

Purchasing/Adm. Assistant

Julie O'Dell julie.odell@safmc.net

SEDAR/ Staff Administrative Assistant

Rachael Lindsay rachael.lindsay@safmc.net